Dynamic Vario Protect

Fonds Commun de placement R.C.S. Luxembourg K 1296

Annual report including the audited financial statements as at May 31, 2025

Table of contents

Management and Administration	1
Report of the Board of Directors	2
Independent Auditor's report	3
Statement of Net Assets	6
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets	7
Statistical information	8
Dynamic Vario Protect	
Schedule of Investments	9
Economic and Geographical Classification of Investments	10
Notes to the financial statements	11
Information to the Shareholders	15
Remuneration policy (Unaudited Information)	16
SFT Regulation (Unaudited Information)	17
Transparency of sustainable investments in periodic reports (Unaudited Information)	18

Management and Administration

Management Company

(Until April 03, 2025) SG 29 HAUSSMANN 29, boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

(As from April 04, 2025)

Société Générale Investment Solutions (France)

29, boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

Board of Directors of the Management Company

Guillaume De Martel

Chairman,

(Until April 03, 2025)

SG 29 HAUSSMANN

29, boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

(As from April 04, 2025)

Société Générale Investment Solutions (France)

29, boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

Supervisory Board of the Management Company

Marc Duval,

Chairman.

17 Cours Valmy,

F-92800 Paris la Défense

France

Alexandre Cegarra

283 Route d'Arlon, L-1150 Luxembourg,

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Emilie Chauvet

17 Cours Valmy,

92800 Paris la Défense,

France

Christian Schricke

Independent director

Thi Mai Huong Nguyen

Independent director

Sophie Mosnier

Independent director

Management

Guillaume de Martel

(Until April 03, 2025)

SG 29 HAUSSMANN

29. boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

(As from April 04, 2025)

Société Générale Investment Solutions (France)

29. boulevard Haussmann

F-75009 Paris

France

Custodian and Paying Agent

Société Générale Luxembourg

11, avenue Emile Reuter

L-2420 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Administrative agent, Registrar and Transfer Agent

Société Générale Luxembourg

11, avenue Emile Reuter

L-2420 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Statutory Auditor

Ernst & Young, Société anonyme

35E, Avenue John F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Investment Adviser

Allianz Global Investors GmbH

Bockenheimer Landstrasse 42-44

D-0323 Frankfurt am Main

Germany

Report of the Board of Directors

Report of the Board of Directors of the Management Company

The world was on track for 3.2% growth in 2024, in line with 2023.

The United States economy continued to outperform, growing by an above potential growth of 2.8%. This is partly down to the ongoing fiscal stimulus, but the healthy state of household and corporate finances is also a factor. In China, growth has slowed to 4.9%, well below its pre-Covid average, hampered by weak domestic demand. The euro area continues to grow below potential, by 0.8%. Germany and Italy are being held back by their reliance on the industry, while the Spanish economy has surprised on the upside. France has grown by 1.1%, helped by a short-term boost from the Olympics, but dogged by still feeble domestic demand.

Also, the beginning of 2025 was heavily impacted by the trade war and marked by a series of twists regarding U.S. tariffs. In mid-May, China and the United States reached an agreement to pause tariff escalation for 90 days. In this context, Washington lowered its tariffs to 30% on Chinese products, while Beijing reduced its own tariffs to 10% on American imports.

In this climate of uncertainty, surveys conducted among American households and businesses still indicate a slowdown in activity, with inflation expectations rising sharply. However, the "hard" data do not show a major impact from the increase in tariff rates, with household consumption remaining resilient and the core PCE inflation (the measure preferred by the Fed) at 2.5% in April.

European activity data, on the other hand, is mixed, with a composite PMI at 49.5, just below the expansion threshold set at 50.

The markets rebounded in April/May 2025 following trade war; Over the fiscal period, in the United States the S&P 500 increased by 12.02%, while the Nasdag recorded a 15.13% rise (+6% and +9% respectively in May 2025).

In Europe, stock performances were also positive. The Euro STOXX 50 rose by 7.68%, +4% during May, while Donald Trump postponed his threats of additional taxes on the European Union until July 9. The German DAX and the Spanish IBEX both increased by 6.5% in May 2025, illustrating Germany's stimulus plan and Spain's strong economic performance.

The Dynamic Vario Protect fund recorded a performance of -1.88% over the fiscal year, from May 31st, 2024 to May 30th, 2025.

At the same time, the MSCI World has been up by 8.74% in EUR terms and the Hedge Funds Industry, represented by the HFRX Global Hedge Fund EUR Index, has been up by 2.27%.

At the end of the financial year, the strategy consisted of the following fund basket:

Fonds	ISIN	Poids
Allianz US Equity Fund A EUR	LU0256843979	10,00%
Concentra A EUR	DE0008475005	10,00%
Allianz Wachstum Europa A EUR	DE0008481821	12,50%
BlackRock Global Funds - World Mining Fund A2 EUR	LU0172157280	5,00%
Allianz Global Investors Fund - Allianz Best Styles Global Equity IT USD	LU1093406939	17,50%
DWS Top Dividende LD EUR	DE0009848119	7,50%
Robeco BP Global Premium Equities I EUR	LU0233138477	5,00%
Schroder International Selection Fund Emerging Markets A1 Accumulation EUR	LU0248178229	7,50%
Pictet - Quest Global Defensive Equities I EUR	LU0845340057	5,00%
DPAM INVEST B - Equities World Sustainable F Cap EUR	BE0948500344	5,00%
Schroder International Selection Fund Global Equity C Accumulation EUR	LU1987117642	5,00%
Wellington Global Research Equity Fund USD Class S Accumulating Unhedged	LU0069024304	5,00%
Allianz Global Investors Fund - Allianz Global Sustainability IT EUR	LU1728567212	5,00%

Luxembourg, June 27, 2025

The Board of Directors

Note: The figures stated in this report are historical and not necessarily indicative of future performance.



Ernst & Young Société anonyme

35E, Avenue John F. Kennedy L-1855 Luxembourg Tél: +352 42 124 1 www.ey.com/en_lu B.P. 780 L-2017 Luxembourg R.C.S. Luxembourg B47771 TVA LU 16063074

Autorisations d'établissement : 00117514/13, 00117514/14, 00117514/15, 00117514/17, 00117514/18, 00117514/19

Independent auditor's report

To the Unitholders of Dynamic Vario Protect (DVP) Société d'Investissement à Capital Variable 28-32, Place de la gare L-1616 Luxembourg

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Dynamic Vario Protect (the "Fund"), which comprise the statement of net assets and the schedule of investments as at 31 May 2025, and the statement of operations and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as at 31 May 2025, and of the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the year then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (the "Law of 23 July 2016") and with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs") as adopted for Luxembourg by the "Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier" ("CSSF"). Our responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the "responsibilities of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" for the audit of the financial statements" section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants ("IESBA Code") as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The Board of Directors of the management company is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.



In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the management company and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The Board of Directors of the management company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the management company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the management company is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the management company either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
 error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
 misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
 collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
 are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
 effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the management company.



- Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors of the management company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé" to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the "réviseur d'entreprises agréé". However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
 disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
 manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Société anonyme Cabinet de révision agréé

Nicelas Bannier

Statement of Net Assets

(expressed in the Sub-Fund's currency)

		Dynamic Vario Protect
	Notes	EUR
ASSETS		
Securities portfolio at cost		67 525 519
Net unrealised profit/ (loss)		2 601 554
Securities portfolio at market value	2.2	70 127 073
Cash at bank	7	4 791 319
Swaps at market value	2.5, 6	7 597 932
		82 516 324
LIABILITIES		
Flat fees payable	3	90 607
Taxe d'abonnement payable	4	1 374
		91 981
TOTAL NET ASSETS		82 424 343

Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

(expressed in the Sub-Fund's currency)

		Dynamic Vario Protect
	Notes	EUR
Net assets at the beginning of the year		81 138 132
INCOME		
Bank interest		310 012
		310 012
EXPENSES		
Flat fees payable	3	1 161 826
Taxe d'abonnement	4	8 713
Interest and bank charges		729
		1 171 268
Net investment income/ (loss)		(861 256)
Net realised gains/ (losses) on		
- securities sold	2.3	2 890 288
- swaps	2.5	(3 208 490)
		(318 202)
Net realised result for the year		(1 179 458)
Change in net unrealised profit/ (loss) on		
- securities	2.2	1 962 094
- swaps	2.5	(2 808 784)
		(846 690)
Result of operations		(2 026 148)
Movements in capital		
Subscriptions		9 645 405
Redemptions		(6 333 046)
		3 312 359
Net assets at the end of the year		82 424 343

Statistical information

Dynamic Vario Protect

	Currency	31/05/25	31/05/24	31/05/23
Class IT (EUR)				
Number of units		915 566.146	884 363.146	889 726.420
Net asset value per unit	EUR	90.0255	91.7475	86.5863
Total Net Assets	EUR	82 424 343	81 138 132	77 038 116

Dynamic Vario Protect

Schedule of Investments

Nominal value/ Quantity	Description	Quotation Currency	Cost EUR	Market value EUR	% o net assets
sferable sec	curities and money market instruments admitted to an officia	al exchange listing or dealt in on a	nother regulated m	arket	
Shar	es				
72 235	ABB LTD	CHF	3 676 449	3 650 337	4.4
4 942	AIRBNB INC	USD	559 335	558 879	0.6
12 716	AIRBUS SE	EUR	2 053 887	2 067 114	2.5
542	AMERICAN EXPRESS CO	USD	131 711	141 048	0.1
4 133	APPLOVIN CORP	USD	973 445	1 399 077	1.7
348 938	ASICS CORP	JPY	6 949 011	7 550 874	9.1
5 446	ASML HOLDING NV	EUR	3 443 110	3 624 313	4.4
2 507	BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC - B	USD	1 120 822	1 118 006	1.3
18 515	BROADCOM INC	USD	3 182 637	3 947 028	4.7
21 421	CIE FINANCIERE RICHEMONT SA - REG	CHF	3 686 605	3 567 878	4.3
9 876	CLOUDFLARE INC	USD	1 007 059	1 428 346	1.7
4 090	COSTCO WHOLESALE CORP	USD	3 654 652	3 634 859	4.4
37 386	DSM-FIRMENICH AG	EUR	3 571 111	3 672 053	4.4
3 103	HEICO CORP	USD	538 647	648 020	0.7
5 151	IQVIA HOLDINGS INC	USD	662 588	639 967	0.7
33 054	JPMORGAN CHASE & CO	USD	7 291 448	7 698 767	9.3
186 504	KDDI CORP	JPY	2 927 280	2 850 824	3.4
6 584	NOVARTIS AG - REG	CHF	654 949	652 280	0.7
8 127	NXP SEMICONDUCTORS NV	USD	1 424 970	1 402 580	1.7
441	RHEINMETALL AG	EUR	784 980	828 419	1.0
9 359	SIEMENS AG - REG	EUR	2 004 983	1 989 723	2.4
75 818	SIEMENS HEALTHINEERS AG	EUR	3 977 412	3 568 753	4.3
263 142	STELLANTIS NV	EUR	2 550 372	2 385 645	2.8
23 720	TESLA INC	USD	7 039 233	7 490 383	9.0
128 692	UBS GROUP AG	CHF	3 658 823	3 611 900	4.3
Total	Shares		67 525 519	70 127 073	85.0
l Transferab	le securities and money market instruments admitted to an	official exchange listing or			
	ner regulated market		67 525 519	70 127 073	85.0
Investment	s		67 525 519	70 127 073	85.0

Dynamic Vario Protect

Economic and Geographical Classification of Investments

Economic classification	%
Banks	13.72
Automobiles and Parts	11.98
General Industrials	11.57
Software and Computer Services	8.22
Technology Hardware and Equipment	6.10
Pharmaceuticals and Biotechnology	5.12
Food Producers	4.46
Industrial Engineering	4.43
Retailers	4.41
Personal Goods	4.33
Aerospace and Defense	4.30
Telecommunications Service Providers	3.46
Investment Banking and Brokerage Services	2.13
Travel and Leisure	0.68
Industrial Support Services	0.17
	85.08

Geographical classification	%
United States of America	34.83
Switzerland	18.38
Japan	12.62
Netherlands	11.50
Germany	7.75
	85 08

Notes to the financial statements

1 - General

The Fund and its accounts shall be audited by an audit firm appointed by the Management Company. No later than four months after the end of each financial year, the Management Company shall publish an audited annual report for the Fund, notably including the requirements arising from the CSSF Circular 13/559 of 18 February 2013. Within two months of the end of the first half of the financial year, the Management Company shall publish an unaudited semi-annual report for the Fund. The reports are available from the Management Company, the Custodian and the Information Agents.

Dynamic Vario Protect was established as a "fonds commun de placement" ("FCP") under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg on 4 June 2007, under the name Cominvest Dynamic SAFE 80 in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and falls within the scope of application of Part I of the Law of Luxembourg of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment ("the Law") and is therefore an undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities ("UCITS") pursuant to Directive 2009/65/EC.

The Management of the Fund is done by SG 29 Haussmann, 29, Boulevard Haussmann, 75009 Paris, France, whose majority shareholder is Société Générale. SG 29 Haussmann is a limited company ("société par actions simplifiée") organized under the laws of France and registered on 9 October 2006.

The original Management Regulations of the Fund entered into effect on 4 June 2007. The last amendment entered into effect on 12 October 2021.

A notice of the filing of the Management Regulations with the Commercial Register in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg was published in the Mémorial, Recueil des Sociétés et Associations ("Mémorial"), the official gazette of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, which was replaced by the "Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations" ("RESA") on 1 June 2016.

As at May 31, 2025, the following Sub-Fund is available:

Dynamic Vario Protect

As at May 31, 2025, the following unit class is issued:

• Class IT (EUR)

The base currency of the Fund is the Euro.

The Fund's financial year begins on 1 June and ends on 31 May of each year.

The Fund participates in the performance of a basket of up to 20 investment funds through a derivative structure (total return swap). These may be global equity, bond and commodity funds. The composition of the basket is flexible and is regularly realigned. Secondly, the redemption price of the fund is guaranteed to be at least 80% of the level of the last valuation day of the previous month at the end of each month valuation day of the previous month. The objective of the investment policy is to allow investors to participate in the performance of a basket of investments fund units using derivative instruments, which is regularly realigned over the long term. At the same time, the derivatives shall be linked to a dynamic hedging model (e.g. a CPPI model). Its purpose is to secure the guarantee issued for unit class IT (EUR).

The Prospectus, the Management Regulations, the current annual and semi-annual reports, the Key Investor Document, as well as the issue and redemption prices, are available free of charge in paper form from the Distribution Agent and free of charge on the Internet on the website: https://investmentsolutions.societegenerale.fr.

The last Net Asset Value of the financial year is dated on May 30, 2025 and calculated with trades and prices as of May 29, 2025.

2 - Principal accounting policies

2.1 Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with Luxembourg regulations relating to undertakings for collective investment.

The Net Asset Value Per Unit of a Unit Class, as well as the issue and redemption prices shall be determined on each banking and trading day in Frankfurt am Main and Luxembourg.

Units of unit class IT (EUR) may only be acquired by non-natural persons.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2.2 Valuation of investment

The Net Asset Value shall be calculated on the second day after each Valuation Day, which is also a banking day in Frankfurt am Main, Luxembourg, New York and Chicago, for each unit class, by dividing the value of the net assets attributable to a unit class (value of the assets minus liabilities) by the number of units of this unit class in circulation on the Valuation Day (hereinafter referred to as "Net Asset Value Per Unit of a Unit Class"). The Net Asset Value Per Unit of a Unit Class shall be calculated:

- for assets which are officially listed on a stock exchange, at the last available paid price;
- for assets which are not officially listed on a stock exchange but which are traded on a regulated market or on other organised markets, also at the last available traded price, provided that at the time of valuation, the Custodian considers this price to be the best possible price at which the assets may be sold;
- for financial futures contracts on foreign currencies, securities, financial indices, interest rates and other permissible financial instruments, as well as options on these and corresponding warrants, insofar as they are listed on a stock exchange, at the most recently determined prices of the relevant stock exchange. Insofar as there is no stock exchange listing, in particular, in the case of all OTC transactions, the valuation shall be made at the likely realisation value, which shall be determined with caution and in good faith;
- for interest rate swaps, at their market value in relation to the applicable yield curve;
- for indices and swaps linked to financial instruments, at their market value determined with reference to the relevant index or financial instrument;
- for units in UCITS or UCIs, at the last determined and available redemption price;
- for cash and cash equivalents and time deposits, at their nominal value plus interest;

Assets for which the prices are not in line with the market and all other assets shall be valued at their likely realisation value, which shall be determined prudently and in good faith.

The Management Company may, at its discretion, permit other methods of valuation if it considers that these provide a better representation of the fair value of the assets.

2.3 Net realised gains/(losses) on securities sold

The realised gain or loss on the sales of securities are calculated on the basis of weighted average costs.

2.4 Foreign exchange translation

The accounts are maintained in Euro ("EUR") and the financial statements are expressed in that currency.

The acquisition cost of securities expressed in a currency other than the EUR is translated into EUR at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of purchase.

Income and expenses expressed in other currencies than the EUR are converted into that currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date.

Assets and liabilities expressed in other currencies than the EUR are converted at the exchange rates prevailing on the closing date.

2.5 Swaps

Swaps are disclosed in the Statement of Net Assets under caption "swaps at market value". Unrealised gains/ losses and realised gains/losses are recorded in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets and include when applicable interests received and paid on swaps.

The realised on swaps in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets includes the balances on swaps paid or received by the Fund in the context of the increase/decrease of the composition of the securities basket, or paid/received in the context of subscriptions/redemptions at the Fund's level.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

3 - Flat fees

The flat fee to be paid by the Fund, taking into account the different unit classes, shall be 1.35% per year for units of unit class IT (EUR) and shall be calculated on the net asset value determined daily. The Management Company shall be free to charge a lower fee.

Remuneration is paid monthly at the end of the month.

As a rule, the Management Company shall pass on parts of its flat-rate remuneration to intermediaries in the form of commission; such payments may also consist of allowances not offered in monetary form. This is done to remunerate and enhance the quality of sales and advisory services on the basis of intermediated assets. At the same time, the Management Company may also receive remuneration or benefits in non-monetary form from third parties. Details of the remuneration and benefits granted or received shall be disclosed to the investor on request to the Management Company. The Management Company may also grant refunds to investors from the lump-sum remuneration.

The following remuneration and expenses are covered by the lump-sum remuneration and are not charged separately to the Fund:

- Remuneration for the administration and central management of the Fund;
- Remuneration for distribution and advisory services;
- Remuneration for the Custodian and costs for depositories;
- Remuneration for the Registrar and Transfer Agent;
- Costs for the preparation (including translation costs) and dispatch of the Prospectus, the Management Regulations, Key Investor Information, the annual, semi-annual and, where applicable, interim reports and other reports and notices to Unitholders;
- Costs of publishing the Prospectus, the Management Regulations, the Key Investor Information, the annual, semi-annual
 and, where applicable, interim reports, other reports and notices to Unitholders, the tax data and the issue and redemption
 prices and notices to Unitholders;
- Costs for the audit of the Fund by the auditor of the annual financial statements;
- Costs of registering the unit certificates for public distribution and/or maintaining such a registration;
- Costs for the preparation of unit certificates and, if applicable, income coupons, as well as the renewal of income coupons/coupon sheets;
- Payment and information agent fees;
- Costs for the assessment of the Fund by nationally and internationally recognised rating agencies;
- Expenses associated with the establishment of the Fund.

In addition to this remuneration, the following expenses may be charged to the Fund:

- Costs incurred in connection with the acquisition and disposal of assets;
- Costs for the enforcement and implementation of legal claims which appear to be justified and are attributable to the Fund or to an existing unit class, if any, and for the defence against claims that appear to be unjustified and are related to the Fund or an existing unit class, if any;
- Costs and any taxes incurred (in particular, the taxe d'abonnement) in connection with administration and safekeeping;
- Costs for the examination, assertion and enforcement of any claims for reduction, credit or refund of withholding taxes or other taxes or fiscal charges.

4 - Taxation

The income of the Fund is not taxed in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg. It may nevertheless be subject to withholding or other taxes in countries in which the assets of the Fund are invested. Neither the Management Company nor the Custodian shall obtain receipts for such taxes for individual or all Unitholders. The Fund's assets are subject to a *taxe d'abonnement* in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg, which is currently at most 0.05% per year.

This *taxe d'abonnement* is payable quarterly on the relevant net assets of the Fund at the end of each quarter. Unitholders who are not resident or do not maintain a permanent establishment in Luxembourg shall not be liable for any income, inheritance or wealth tax on their units or income from units in Luxembourg.

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

5 - Exchange rates

The following exchange rates have been used for the preparation of these financial statements:

1 EUR = 0.93270 CHF 1 EUR = 0.84185 GBP 1 EUR = 163.81090 JPY 1 EUR = 1.13525 USD

6 - Swaps

As at May 31, 2025, the Fund had the following swaps detailed below:

Dynamic Vario Protect

Maturity Date	Contract	Underlying	Currency	Nominal	Market Value (expressed in EUR)
30/05/25	Total return equity swap	Basket of Securities	EUR	81 999 996	13 052 872
30/05/25	Total return equity swap	DVP TIPP Strategy	EUR	87 700 000	(5 454 940)
					7 597 932

The counterparty of the swaps is Société Générale (FR).

7 - Collateral

As at May 31, 2025, the cash and securities collateral granted to or received from the counterparty for the purpose of the transacting in OTC derivative is as follows:

Fund	Currency	Counterparty	Type of collateral	Collateral Amount Received	Collateral Amount Paid
Dynamic Vario Protect	EUR	SOCIETE GENERALE	Cash	-	670 000
Dynamic vano Protect	EUR	SOCIETE GENERALE	Securities	3 005 812	-

Cash at bank in statement of net assets is net of collateral paid to counterparty.

8 - Significant event

On April 04, 2025, SG 29 Haussmann has changed its name and became Société Générale Investment Solutions (France), "SG IS (France)".

9 - Subsequent event

The Fund became under article 8 of SFDR on June 02, 2025.

Information to the Shareholders

1- Operating and management expenses (TER)

These expenses rates for the year as from June 01, 2024 to May 31, 2025 are the following:

Sub-Fund	Share Class	Currency	Total Rate
Dynamic Vario Protect	Class IT (EUR)	EUR	1.36%

These expenses cover all the fees charged directly to the Sub-Fund.

2 - Global risk exposure calculation method

The approach used for the Fund is the commitment.

As of May 31, 2025 the Global Risk Exposure was 205.89%.

Remuneration policy (Unaudited Information)

The remuneration paid by SG 29 Haussmann consists of fixed remuneration and may, if economic conditions permit, include a variable component in the form of a discretionary bonus. These bonuses are not linked to the performance of the vehicles managed (no profit-sharing on capital gains).

SG 29 Haussmann applies the remuneration policy of the Societe Generale Group. This Group policy incorporates many of the principles set out in Annex II of the UCITS Directive, which are common to the prudential rules already applicable at consolidated Group level (see Report on Remuneration Policies and Practices of the Societe Generale Group). In addition, in 2014, SG 29 Haussmann made adjustments to this policy in order to comply with the rules specific to the UCITS Directive specific to the sector of alternative management fund managers, notably by setting up an indexing mechanism (basket of 4 funds representing the activity of SG29 Haussmann) for all employees who receive deferred remuneration in order to ensure alignment of the interests of employees with those of investors.

Thus, the variable remuneration of SG 29 Haussmann employees covered by the UCITS Directive is subject to the following provisions and conditions:

- A deferred acquisition up to 40% minimum, with a deferred payment spread over 3 years prorata temporis,
- A payment of 50% of the total variable remuneration (acquired and unearned) in the form of financial instruments or equivalent,
- An acquisition of the unit not acquired subject to compliance with conditions of presence and performance adjusted for the entity's risks.

SG 29 Haussmann's remuneration policy does not affect the risk profile of the UCITS and covers all conflicts of interest related to the financial management of vehicles.

SG 29 Haussmann	Amount of fixed remuneration	Amount of variable Remuneration (EUR)	Aggregate Remuneration
Employees impacting the risk profile	9 545 122	3 712 100	13 257 222

This information is available on our website at: https://www.investmentsolutions.societegenerale.fr.

SFT Regulation (Unaudited Information)

Total return swaps

Following the Regulation 2015/2365 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on transparency of securities financing transactions, please find bellow details about total return swaps for the year ended May 31, 2025:

	Dynamic Vario Protect
Amount of Total Return Swaps expressed in absolute amount (in the currency of the Sub-Fund)	18 507 812
Proportion of AUM	22.45%
Maturity tenor of total return swaps broken down in the following maturity buckets	
Less than one day	18 507 812
One day to one week	
One week to one month	
One month to three months	
Three months to one year	
Above one year	
Open maturity	
Total	18 507 812
Counterparty	
Name of the counterparty	see Note 7
Country of domicile of the counterparty	see Note 7
Gross volume of the outstanding transactions	see Note 7
Data on Collateral	
Type of collateral	
Cash	see Note 7
Securities	see Note 7
Quality of collateral	
Rating	
Maturity tenor of the collateral broken down in the following maturity buckets	
Less than one day	
One day to one week	
One week to one month	
One month to three months	
Three months to one year	
Above one year	
Open maturity	see Note 7
Total	see Note 7
Safekeeping of collateral received by the Fund as part of Total Return Swap	
Name of custodian	SOCIETE GENERALE
Securities	see Note 7
Cash	see Note 7
Proportion of collateral granted	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Returns and costs incurred from total return swap transactions during the year May 31, 2025, are included in the valuation of the swaps.

All transactions are bilateral transactions.

The collateral on total return swaps is not reused.

Transparency of sustainable investments in periodic reports (Unaudited Information)

The Fund is considered as not falling within the scope of Article 8 or Article 9 of SFDR as it does not promote Sustainability Factors and do not maximize portfolio alignment with Sustainability Factors.

The Fund however remain exposed to Sustainability Risks and fall within the scope of Article 6 of SFDR.

The investments underlying this financial product do not take into the account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities

